
FINANCE COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Tuesday, May 28, 2019 - 10:00 AM

1000 Main Street, Cambria, CA 93428

AGENDA
A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ESTABLISH QUORUM

C. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public may now address the Committee on any item of
interest within the jurisdiction of the Committee but not on its agenda
today. In compliance with the Brown Act, the Committee cannot discuss
or act on items not on the agenda. Each speaker has up to three minutes.
Speaker slips (available at the entry) should be submitted to the
Committee Chairperson.

2. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Consideration to Approve the April 23, 2019 Regular Meeting
Minutes

3. REGULAR BUSINESS

A. Discussion and Consideration to Review the Preliminary Budget FY
2019/20 and Approve Recommendations to the Board

B. Discussion and Consideration Regarding the Reserve Policy
Developed by the Ad Hoc Committee and Recommendations to the
Board

C. Discussion and Consideration Regarding the Committee Bylaws
Developed by the Ad Hoc Committee and Recommendations to the
Board

4. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

5. ADJOURN



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CONSENT AGENDA 

MINUTES 1 

REGULAR BUSINESS ITEM 3.A. 

DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO REVIEW THE PRELIMINARY BUDGET FY 2019/20 AND APPROVE 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE BOARD 6 

REGULAR BUSINESS ITEM 3.B. 

DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION REGARDING THE RESERVE POLICY DEVELOPED BY THE AD HOC COMMITTEE AND 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE BOARD 
73 

REGULAR BUSINESS ITEM 3.C. 

DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION REGARDING THE COMMITTEE BYLAWS DEVELOPED BY THE AD HOC COMMITTEE 

AND RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE BOARD 
75 



FINANCE COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, April 23, 2019 - 10:00 AM 

1000 Main Street, Cambria, CA 93428 

MINUTES 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Steidel called the meeting to order at 10:03 

B. ESTABLISH QUORUM

A quorum was established. 

Committee members present:  Cindy Steidel, Ted Siegler, Dewayne Lee, Mary Maher, Marvin 
Corne, Cheryl McDowell 

Staff present:  Interim General Manager Paavo Ogren, Finance Manager Pam Duffield 

Public Present: Harry Farmer, Karen Dean, Elizabeth Bettenhausen, Crosby Swartz, Laura Swartz 

C. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

• Mission Country Disposal Rate Increase

• Grants for Fire Prevention

• Storm Water Resource Grants

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

2. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Consideration to Approve the March 26, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes

1 Consent Agenda 2.A.



 
Motion to approve the minutes. 
 
Motion by: Vice-chair Siegler 
 
Seconded by: Committee member Corne 
 
The motion was approved 5-Ayes (Siegler, Lee, Maher, McDowell, Corne), 0-Nays, 0-Abstain 
 
3. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
Items 3.D., 3.E., and 3.F. were moved to the top of the Agenda. Item 3.C. was postponed to a 
future meeting. 
 
A. Discussion Regarding the Committee Mission Statement and Bylaws Developed by the 

Ad Hoc Committee 
 
Motion: The Committee moved to adopt the Mission Statement, developed by the ad hoc 
committee, as presented in the meeting’s Agenda materials. 
 
Motion by: Committee member Corne 
 
Seconded by: Committee member Maher 
 
The motion was approved 5-Ayes (Siegler, Lee, Maher, McDowell, Corne), 0-Nays, 0-Abstain 
 
 
B. Discussion Regarding the Goals and Objectives Developed by the Ad Hoc Committee 
 
Motion: The Committee moved to adopt the Goals and Objectives, developed by the ad hoc 
committee, as presented in the meeting’s Agenda materials.  
 
Motion by: Committee member Maher 
Seconded by: Committee member McDowell 
 
The motion was approved 5-Ayes (Siegler, Lee, Maher, McDowell, Corne), 0-Nays, 0-Abstain 
 
C. Discussion and Consideration to Appoint an Ad Hoc Committee to Explore Revenue 

Options for East-West Ranch Maintenance 
 

Postponed to future meeting. 
 
D. Considerations of Recommendations to Approve Water and Wastewater Rate Increases 

that are Prescribed in Prop 218 Actions Approved by the Board of Directors in October 
2018 

 

2 Consent Agenda 2.A.



Motion: The Committee recommends that the Board adopt the findings as presented by Mr. 
Ogren and approve rate increases as prescribed in the Prop 218 Actions approved by the Board in 
October 2018. 
 
Motion by: Vice-chair Siegler 
 
Seconded by: Committee member Maher 
 
The Motion was approved 4-Ayes (Siegler, Lee, Maher, Corne), 1-Nay (McDowell), 0-Abstain 

 

E. Review of 3rd Quarter Budget and Staff Recommendation 
 

1. Motion: The Committee recommends that the Board formally adopt and ratify Budget 
Adjustments made during the first half of the 2018-19 fiscal year as presented by staff. 

 
Motion by: Committee member Maher 

 
Seconded by: Committee member McDowell 

 
The Motion was approved 5-Ayes (Siegler, Lee, Maher, McDowell, Corne), 0-Nays, 0-
Abstain 

 

2. Motion: The Committee recommends that the Board adopt the 3rd quarter budget 
adjustments presented by staff. 

 
Motion by: Committee member Maher 

 
Seconded by: Committee member Corne 
 
The Motion was approved 5-Ayes (Siegler, Lee, Maher, McDowell, Corne), 0-Nays, 0-
Abstain 

 
3. Motion: The Committee recommends to the Board that the Wastewater Fund pay accrued 

interest to the General Fund on the Interfund Loan between the two Funds and that any 
surplus of the Wastewater Fund be set aside as Reserves. 

 
Motion by: Committee member Lee 

 
Seconded by: Committee member Maher 

 
The Motion was approved 5-Ayes (Siegler, Lee, Maher, McDowell, Corne), 0-Nays, 0-
Abstain 

 

4. Motion: The Committee recommends to the Board that to the extent any Fund Balances 
are set aside as Reserves, cash, equal to the amount of such Reserve be invested in an 

3 Consent Agenda 2.A.



interest-bearing account and held there until such time as the Board determines to use 
Reserve funds. 

 
Motion by: Committee member McDowell 

 
Seconded by: Committee member Maher 

 
The Motion was approved 5-Ayes (Siegler, Lee, Maher, McDowell, Corne), 0-Nays, 0-
Abstain 

 
F. Discussion on 2019/20 Budget Development and Timing 
 

Motion: The Committee appoints Committee member Maher and Vice-chair Siegler as an ad hoc 
subcommittee to work with Staff on the details of the 2019-20 Budget. 
 
Motion by: Committee member Corne 
 
Seconded by: Committee member Maher 
 
The Motion was approved 5-Ayes (Siegler, Lee, Maher, McDowell, Corne), 0-Nays, 0-Abstain 
 
4. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The Committee agreed to hold a special meeting with the Infrastructure and Resource Committee to 
discuss the current status and future plans for CIP. The meeting will be held at 2:00 p.m. on May 14, 2019. 
 
5. ADJOURN 

 
Chairman Steidel adjourned the meeting at 

4 Consent Agenda 2.A.



5 Consent Agenda 2.A.



 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
TO: Standing Finance Committee     AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.A. 
 
FROM:  Paavo Ogren, Interim General Manager 
  Pam Duffield, Finance Manager 
  Numerous members of District management and staff 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Meeting Date: May 28, 2019  Subject: Discussion and Consideration to Review 

the Preliminary Budget FY 2019/20 and Approve 
Recommendations to the Board 

 
Recommendation:  
Staff recommends the Finance Committee discuss and review the FY 2019/20 preliminary 
budget and approve recommendations to the Board of Directors. 
 
Summary: 
The development of the FY 2019/20 preliminary budget is being presented to the Finance Committee 
prior to consideration by the District Board of Directors on June 20, 2019.  Finance Committee members 
may wish to consider holding a special meeting on or about June 11, 2019 in the event that modifications 
to the attached budget schedules or other information is desired by the committee, and if the committee 
wishes to review those changes prior to consideration by the Board of Directors.   
 
In addition, staff has worked to conform with the District’s Budget Policy (see below).  The committee 
may also wish to consider holding a special meeting to review that additional work prior to its 
consideration by the Board of Directors.  For example, additional work that is needed includes a narrative 
of significant budget issues and objectives.  
 
Prior to September 1, 2019, the Board of Directors must also consider a final budget.  The purpose of 
the preliminary budget is to establish the District’s revenue and expenditure plans for the upcoming fiscal 
year.  As a result, it must be approved prior to July 1, 2019.  The purpose of the final budget is to include 
fund balances and reserve designations.   
 
The later date for approval of the final budget provides the District with an opportunity to close the current 
year’s accounting records and determine beginning fund balances for the upcoming fiscal year.  Once 
the current year’s accounting records are closed and next year’s beginning fund balances are 
determined, then the revenue and expenditure plans adopted in the preliminary budget will be used to 
estimate fund balances at the end of the upcoming fiscal year, which will be June 30, 2020.   
 
With the adoption of the final budget, which is anticipated for the Board meeting of  August 15, 2019, the 
Board does have discretion to modify the revenue and expenditures approved in the preliminary budget 
just as the Board can modify the budget during the fiscal year.  The budget schedules are set up to track 
any mid-year budget adjustments that are approved so that quarterly budget reviews by the Finance 
Committee and the Board of Directors during the upcoming fiscal year will illustrate the original approved 
budget and any approved mid-year budget adjustments. 
 
District Budget Policy: 
On December 13, 2018, the District Board of Directors approved its “Budget Policy” which can be located 
at the following link: 
 
https://www.cambriacsd.org/files/d9631630d/CCSD+Budget+Policy+-+Board+approved+on+12-13-2018.pdf 
 
The budget policy includes several procedures that guide budget preparation.  Some of the procedures 
have been accomplished but others are only partially complete.  Although the attached budget schedules 
have been prepared to provide the committee with the ability to consider revenue and expenditure plans 

6 Consent Agenda 2.A.



 
 

 

required in a preliminary budget, additional requirements of the District’s Budget Policy continue to be 
work-in-progress. 
 
The following is a list of the procedures included in the District Budget Policy: 
 

A. Plans, goals, resources  
B. Calendaring  
C. Mid-year Budget Update  
D.  Organization chart and headcount 
E.  CIP  
F.  Overhead Allocation 
G.  Income Allocation – Property Tax and Other  
H.  Structure  
I.   Consolidation Entries  

 
The following provides a status on each procedure: 
 

A. Plans, goals, resources  
The following is a summary of the requirements of this budget procedure: 
 

• A budget narrative that discusses the following: 
o Measurable goals, objectives and plans 
o Trade-offs between competing objectives 
o Mid-year reporting on achievements and gaps 

 
Staff has not yet drafted the budget narrative.  Committee discussion on these points will be helpful for 
upcoming preparation of the narrative. 
 

B. Calendaring  
The “Calendaring” budget procedure establishes the timing of budget preparation and review.  Although 
the status of budget efforts complies with state statutes, the timing established in the Calendaring section 
of the budget policy were not met. 
 

C. Mid-year Budget Update  
Not applicable at this time. 
 

D.  Organization chart and headcount 
Staff is close to completing a draft of the proposed organization chart and headcount (i.e. the Position 
Allocation List).  A narrative specifically relating to staffing and positions still needs to be drafted.  
Recommendations on staffing includes creating and filling (2) positions for wastewater system operations 
and one (1) position for water system operations, which were included in funding provided by Proposition 
218 rate increases approved in October 2018.  Other staffing recommendations that need to be drafted 
include career-series designations for the Management Analyst and Deputy District Clerk positions and 
deferral of the Utilities Manager and clerical assistant included in the Prop 218 funding.  Those positions 
are deferred to provide the opportunity to consider alternatives. 
 

E.  CIP (Capital Improvement Plans)  
This procedure has been completed and budget recommendations on CIP are ready for committee 
consideration.  Some trade-offs exist that will require discussions.  The CIP prioritization efforts that have 
been reviewed by the Resource and Infrastructure Committee, including the joint meeting with the 
Finance Committee, have provided the groundwork for considering CIP related budget 
recommendations. 
 

 

7 Consent Agenda 2.A.



 
 

 

F.  Overhead Allocation 
This procedure has been completed consistent with the Budget Policy.  The overhead allocations are 
included in the Administrative budget schedules. 
 

G.  Income Allocation – Property Tax and Other  
This procedure has been completed consistent with the Budget Policy.  The majority of property tax 
revenues are allocated to General Fund budgets and a small amount allocated to the Wastewater 
Enterprise Fund budget to offset low income rate reductions. 
 

H.  Structure  
This procedure has been completed for the preliminary budget.  Details associated with fund balances 
are included in the final budget, as previously discussed in the Summary of this staff report. 
 

I.   Consolidation Entries  
This procedure has not been completed and staff wishes to discuss its applicability.  This procedure 
includes direction to create “Eliminating Entries” to avoid overstating revenues and expenditures.  
Eliminating entries are, however, more closely associated with financial audits and annual reports that 
are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and related 
authoritative proclamations published by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  Eliminating entries are not typically associated with 
budgeting of governmental funds since interfund transfers and overhead allocations are allowable 
transactions provided specific criteria are met to ensure that standards associated with governmental 
fund accounting are not violated.  The budget schedules have been developed so that interfund transfers 
and overhead allocations are easily identified. 
 
Budget Schedules: 
The following budget schedules are attached: 
 

• Consolidated General Fund Summary 
o Summary and Detailed Schedules for each General Fund budgets: 

▪ Fire Fund 
▪ Facilities and Resources Fund 
▪ PROS (Parks, Recreation and Open Space) Fund 
▪ Administrative Fund (Including the Overhead Allocation spreadsheet) 

• Consolidated Enterprise Fund Summary 
o Summary and Detailed Schedules for each Enterprise Fund budget: 

▪ Water Fund 
▪ SWF Operations Fund 
▪ SWF Capital Fund 

• Consolidated Water Fund Summary 

• Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 Consent Agenda 2.A.



 
 

 

Budget Discussion Topics: 
 
Staff is prepared to review each of the budgets in the order listed above.  The following is an outline of 
the topics that staff is intending to cover while reviewing the budget schedules. 
 

1. Is the budget balanced as presented or are additional decisions needed so that it can be balanced? 
2. How were the revenue and expenditure estimates determined? 
3. What are the trade-offs? 
4. What budget requests have been submitted but are not included in the attached schedules since they 

have been considered to be un-fundable?  
5. What supplemental revenues, if any, might be available to help close budget gaps?  
6. What special studies or other work is required next year? 
7. How are the capital project priorities reflected? Is it consistent with direction provided from the joint 

meeting of the Finance Committee and the Resource and Infrastructure Committee?  
8. How do the Enterprise Fund budgets compare to the Proposition 218 estimates? 
9. What goals and objectives are appropriate for each budget? 

 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. FY 2019/20 Preliminary Budget 
 

9 Consent Agenda 2.A.



10 Consent Agenda 2.A.



11 Consent Agenda 2.A.



12 Consent Agenda 2.A.



13 Consent Agenda 2.A.



14 Consent Agenda 2.A.



15 Consent Agenda 2.A.



16 Consent Agenda 2.A.



17 Consent Agenda 2.A.



18 Consent Agenda 2.A.



19 Consent Agenda 2.A.



20 Consent Agenda 2.A.



21 Consent Agenda 2.A.



22 Consent Agenda 2.A.



23 Consent Agenda 2.A.



24 Consent Agenda 2.A.



25 Consent Agenda 2.A.



26 Consent Agenda 2.A.



27 Consent Agenda 2.A.



28 Consent Agenda 2.A.



29 Consent Agenda 2.A.



30 Consent Agenda 2.A.



31 Consent Agenda 2.A.



32 Consent Agenda 2.A.



33 Consent Agenda 2.A.



34 Consent Agenda 2.A.



35 Consent Agenda 2.A.



36 Consent Agenda 2.A.



37 Consent Agenda 2.A.



38 Consent Agenda 2.A.



39 Consent Agenda 2.A.



40 Consent Agenda 2.A.



41 Consent Agenda 2.A.



42 Consent Agenda 2.A.



43 Consent Agenda 2.A.



44 Consent Agenda 2.A.



45 Consent Agenda 2.A.



46 Consent Agenda 2.A.



47 Consent Agenda 2.A.



48 Consent Agenda 2.A.



49 Consent Agenda 2.A.



50 Consent Agenda 2.A.



51 Consent Agenda 2.A.



52 Consent Agenda 2.A.



53 Consent Agenda 2.A.



54 Consent Agenda 2.A.



55 Consent Agenda 2.A.



56 Consent Agenda 2.A.



57 Consent Agenda 2.A.



58 Consent Agenda 2.A.



59 Consent Agenda 2.A.



60 Consent Agenda 2.A.



61 Consent Agenda 2.A.



62 Consent Agenda 2.A.



63 Consent Agenda 2.A.



64 Consent Agenda 2.A.



65 Consent Agenda 2.A.



66 Consent Agenda 2.A.



67 Consent Agenda 2.A.



68 Consent Agenda 2.A.



69 Consent Agenda 2.A.



70 Consent Agenda 2.A.



71 Consent Agenda 2.A.



72 Consent Agenda 2.A.



Attachment to Regular Business Item 3.B. 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

RESERVE POLICY 

Purpose: The Cambria Community Services District shall maintain reserve funds from existing 
unrestricted funds as designated by the District’s Reserve Policy. Funds established under this 
policy shall function as both Capital Outlay and Contingency Reserves. This policy establishes 
the procedure and level of reserve funding to achieve goals, including the following: 

a. Maintain operational sustainability in periods of economic uncertainty.
b. Contingencies (i.e. unplanned but necessary expenditures, emergencies, disasters, etc.)
c. Fund replacement and major repairs for the district’s major assets and infrastructure.
d. Fund multi-year capital improvements.
e. Fund designated projects/programs or other special uses not otherwise funded by current

operational income, grants or other available sources.

The District will account for reserves as required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 54 which distinguishes reserves as among these classes: non-spendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned and unassigned. The reserves stated by this policy, unless otherwise 
required by law, contract, or district policy shall be deemed “unassigned” and “assigned” 
reserves. Reserves set aside pursuant to this Policy will be matched by cash investments. 

Policy: Use of District Reserves is limited to available “Unrestricted” Funds, including 
donations, interest earned, fees for service, tax revenues or other non-grant earnings. All special 
use funds will be designated by formal action of the Board of Directors. 

a. Reserve Funds will be set aside in each of the District’s three Funds (General, Water and
Wastewater). The Board of Directors will determine the amount to be set aside as
Reserves as line-items in the Annual Budget. At a minimum, the lesser of $________ and
___% of revenue will be set aside. In the event that any of the District’s Funds receives
material, unanticipated eligible revenue (e.g. a windfall) or budget surplus, the Board will
consider setting aside some or all of such unanticipated revenue or surplus for reserves
before committing expenditure for other purposes. The accumulated balance of
unassigned Reserve Funds will not exceed ___% of the respective Fund’s prior year
Unrestricted Income. Assigned Reserve Funds shall not exceed the specific purpose for
which they are accumulated.

b. Reserves will be set aside for the following purposes:
a. General Fund unassigned Reserves:

i. Operating Reserve: Funds to be used to provide for operations in
anticipation of Property Tax receipts. Any reserves used for this purpose
will be replaced when the Property Taxes are received.

ii. Contingencies
b. General Fund assigned Reserves:

i. Vehicle Fleet purchases to support District operations.
ii. Technology Reserve to purchase hardware and software to support

District operations.

73 Consent Agenda 2.A.



Attachment to Regular Business Item 3.B. 

iii. Capital Improvement expenditures to purchase necessary capital assets
or repair, replace, or extend the life of existing assets.

iv. Special Projects identified by District Staff or the Board of Directors
including responses to regulatory requirements.

c. Water Fund unassigned Reserves:
i. Income buffer to be used when income is reduced as a result of

unanticipated drops in demand due to conservation during dry years
ii. Contingencies.

d. Water Fund assigned Reserves:
i. SWF Operations set aside during years of non-operation to anticipate

expenses incurred when the plant is operated.
ii. Vehicle Fleet purchases to support District operations.

iii. Technology Reserve to purchase hardware and software to support
District operations.

iv. Capital Improvement expenditures to purchase necessary capital assets
or repair, replace, or extend the life of existing assets.

v. Special Projects identified by District Staff or the Board of Directors
including responses to regulatory requirements.

e. Wastewater Fund unassigned Reserves:
i. Income buffer to be used when income is reduced as a result of

unanticipated drops in demand due to conservation during dry years.
ii. Contingencies

f. Wastewater Fund assigned Reserves:
i. Vehicle Fleet purchases to support District operations.

ii. Technology Reserve to purchase hardware and software to support
District operations.

iii. Capital Improvement expenditures to purchase necessary capital assets
or repair, replace, or extend the life of existing assets.

iv. Special Projects identified by District Staff or the Board of Directors
including responses to regulatory requirements.

Monitoring Reserve Levels: The General Manager, in collaboration with the Financial 
Manager, will report to the Board of Directors, on a semi-annual basis, Reserve Balances and 
Activity. Additional information will be provided: 

a. When a major change in conditions threatens the reserve levels established by this
policy,

b. When a major change in conditions calls the effectiveness of this policy into question,
or

c. Upon Board of Directors request.

74 Consent Agenda 2.A.



Attachment to Regular Business Item 3.C. 

Revision 2, 5/20/19, DRAFT 

Color Code of Text 
Blue – Steidel 

Green – From CCSD Board Bylaws, Tailored for Committee Use, by direction of President Pierson 

Red – Latest Language in R&I Bylaws 

Purple – Finance Committee Language which differs in structure from R&I Bylaws 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT 

FINANCE STANDING COMMITTEE BYLAWS 

I. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY
A. The Finance Standing Committee serves as an Advisory resource to the Cambria

CSD Board of Directors providing oversight for transparent budget processes and financial 

management that promote fiscal stability and instill public trust.  In addition, the 

Committee will support and work directly with the General Manager and Finance Manager 

in enhancing financial integrity and monetary discipline.  

B. Maintain collaborative working relationships with the public, other standing

committees and the CCSD Board of Directors.  Support other standing committee’s fiscal 

review needs.  

C. Apart from their normal function as part of this advisory resource, Committee

members have no individual authority and may not represent the Committee or the CCSD 

in any policy, act or expenditure. 

II. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES
A. At the direction of the Cambria CSD Board of Directors:   1)  discuss, receive public

input and advise the Board on Financial matters;  2)  provide financial review, assessment 

and recommendations to district staff and CCSD Board of Directors regarding potential 

projects available to the district by private, public, county or state entities. 

B. Members of the Committee and their activities are bound by all applicable

provision of the Brown Actions (Government Cod Sections 54950, et seq.). 

C. Member of the Committee shall not participate in discussion of, or vote on issues

constituting conflicts of interest – “no public official shall make, participate in making, or in 

any attempt to use his official position to influence a governmental decision in which he/she 

knows or has reason to know he/she has a financial interest.”  (Government Code Section 

87100). 

D. Members of the Committee are charged with protecting and upholding the public

interest and exhibiting the highest level of ethics in all actions. 

75 Consent Agenda 2.A.



Attachment to Regular Business Item 3.C. 
 

III. TERMS OF APPOINTMENT AND OFFICES 
 A. The Committee shall consist of five members from the community with full voting 

privileges and one ex officio board director as chairperson.  Committee members shall be 

appointed by the CCSD Board of Directors with a majority vote. 

 B. Each Citizen Committee member shall serve a two-year term.  Upon the request 

of a retiring Committee member, at the end of a completed term of office, with the 

recommendation of the Committee, and at the direction of the CCSD Board of Directors, a 

committee member may be appointed for additional term two year terms, in increments. 

 C. Each Committee member shall live within the CCSD boundaries, hold no other 

public office within the CCSD, and shall serve at the pleasure of the CCSD Board. 

 D. The members of the Committee shall elect a Vice-Chairperson and Secretary, and 

the Chairperson shall be appointed by the CCSD Board of Directors.  The Chairperson shall 

preside over meetings, appoint appropriate committees, sign reports, establish meeting 

agendas and represent the Committee at the regular Board meeting.  In the absence of the 

Chairperson, the duties of this office shall be performed by the Vice Chairperson.  The terms 

of these offices shall be one year with elections occurring at the first regular meeting of each 

year.  

IV. DUTIES OF COMMITTEE OFFICERS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
 A. The Chairperson shall: 
  1. Chair the Finance Committee Meetings 

  2. Chair the Finance Executive Committee to include the Chairperson and  

  Vice Chairperson 

  3. Vote only in the event of a tied vote of the community members of the  

  Committee. 

  4. Coordinate input for agenda topics for the monthly Finance Committee  

  meetings with CSD staff.  

  5. Develop an Annual Calendar of Events that includes Joint Standing   

  Committee meetings supporting budget development. 

  6. Appoint Ad hoc committees as needed. 

  7. Act as liaison to CCSD standing committees and appoint  

  representatives to act as liaison to other committees. 

 B. The Vice Chairperson shall: 
  1. Perform the duties of the Chairperson in his or her absence. 

  2. Coordinate preparation of Finance priorities with the Chairperson to be  

  submitted to the CCSD staff.  

  3. Attend Executive Committee meetings as needed. 

  

 

 

76 Consent Agenda 2.A.



Attachment to Regular Business Item 3.C. 
 

 C. The Secretary shall: 
  1. Record the minutes of the meetings, ensuring the accuracy of when, how  

  and by whom the Committee’s business was conducted.  Minutes are recorded in  

  written form as well as my audio recording. 

  2. Include at a minimum:  The date, time and location of the meeting; a list  

  of the Committee members present and absent; a record of reports presented  

  and by whom; the text of motions presented and description of any action taken,  

  list of items considered for future agenda, time of meeting adjournment.  
  3. Submit the draft written minutes and audio recording to CCSD staff for the  

 record. 

 D. Committee Members: 
  1. Information that is exchanged before meetings shall be distributed   

 through the District Clerk and Committee members will receive all information   

 being distributed as part of the normal meeting Agenda posting. 

  2. Committee members shall at all time conduct themselves with courtesy to  

 each other, to staff and to member of the audience present at Board meeting.  

  3. Individual Committee members have the right to disagree with ideas or  

  opinions, while being respectful.  Once the Committee takes action, individual  

  members should not create barriers to the implementation of any action voted  

  upon by the committee. 
 

V. AGENDA PROCEDURE 
 A. Finance Standing Committee Regular Meetings 

  1. The Committee shall meet within the jurisdictional boundaries of the CCSD  

  except in an emergency. 

  2. Member shall provide input on the agenda to the Chairperson. 

  3. Executive Committee shall develop the draft agenda with the CCSD staff 

  4. CCSD staff shall prepare the final agenda, attachments and emails to all Finance  

  Committee members.  Agendas are distributed to an agenda distribution list. 

  5. CCSD staff shall post agendas at the District Administrative Office, Veteran’s  

  Memorial Hall, and the Cambria Public Library. 

 

VI. Ad Hoc Committees 

 The Chairperson shall appoint Ad Hoc  committees as may be deemed necessary or advisable.   

 The duties of an Ad Hoc committee shall be outlined at the time of the appointment and an ad 

 Hoc committee shall be considered dissolved when its final report has been made. 

 

 

77 Consent Agenda 2.A.



Attachment to Regular Business Item 3.C. 
 

VII. COMMITTEE PROCEDURES 

 A. The committee shall meet on the fourth Tuesday of each month unless 

otherwise publicly noticed 72 hours in advance.  The Committee may call public noticed 

special meetings as needed. 

 B. A majority of the committee members shall constitute a quorum. 

 C. All Committee meetings shall be conducted by laws governing open meetings 

and public participation 

 D. The CCSD Board shall appoint staff liaison to the Committee for the purpose of 

improving the flow of communication between the entities. 

 E. The CCSD General Manager, or his/her designated representative(s) shall assist 

the Committee as Staff to the Committee 

 F. After two consecutive unexcused absences of a committee member, the 

Committee, by a majority vote, may recommend to the CCSD Board the dismissal of said 

Committee member. 

 G. Should a Committee member disrupt Committee meetings or participate in 

behavior contrary to the charges and responsibilities of the Committee, the Committee , by a 

majority vote, may recommend to the CCSD Board the removal of said member. 

 H. Committee members desiring to resign shall submit a letter of resignation to 

the Committee Chairperson and this shall be forwarded to the CCSD Board. 

 I. Each committee member shall be appointed for a two-year term in 

concurrence with the CCSD Board of Director elections.   Committee members shall be asked 

to declare their intent to continue service yearly.  When committee members decide to 

terminate service, the remaining committee members shall recommend community members 

to be voted on by the CCSD Board of Directors.  (This is from R&I Committee Adopted Bylaws) 

(This different from the Finance article J below. )  

 I.  To fill a vacancy on the Standing Finance Committee resulting from the 

expiration of a regular term of office with no request for reappointment, such vacancy shall 

be advertised for a minimum of two weeks in the local Newspaper, and posted at all Cambria 

CSD public information bulletin boards.  The application period shall extend from the date of 

first posting the vacancy until a date four weeks following.  Applications may be obtained at 

the Cambria CSD Administrative Offices during normal business hours during the application 

period. (This is from Finance Bylaws). 

 J. Vacancies of unexpired terms of office of regular Committee members shall be 

filled from current applications.  Such vacancy shall be filled by appointment of the Cambria 

CSD Board of Directors.  (This is from Finance Bylaws).  

 

 

 

 

78 Consent Agenda 2.A.



Attachment to Regular Business Item 3.C. 
 

 

VIII. PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 
 The rules contained in the current edition of ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER, Newly 

Revised, shall govern the Committee in all cases to which they are applicable and in which 

they are not consistent with these bylaws, any special rules of order the Committee may 

adopt and statutes applicable to the Committee that do not authorize the provision of these 

laws to take precedence. 

 

IX. AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS 
 The Bylaws may be amended by majority vote at any regular meeting of the 

Committee provided that written notice of the proposed changes is mailed to each member 

of the Committee no less than one week in advance.  Changes must be approved by the CCSD 

Board. 

  

  

 

 

79 Consent Agenda 2.A.




